
1 of 2 
 

 
NOTICE OF CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS, WILL MEET IN A WORKSHOP SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, April 22, 2014 

 
TIME:   6:45 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  City Council Workshop Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and any 
consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. Public comments are 
welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will be received at a Workshop 
Meeting. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting 
to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Review and discuss proposed Ordinance No. 2014-08, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 

by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections (a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to 
Section 6-362.2 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, providing for expanded boundaries of Sign District “B”; 
by adding a new Section 6-362.3 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, establishing Sign District “C” and 
regulations for Sign District “C”; by adding a new Section 6-362.4 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, 
establishing a Sign District map; providing a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this 
Code for violation of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or 
in conflict herewith; and providing for severability. (Tanner) 
 

2. Review and discuss the FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. (Maresh) 
 

3. Review and discuss proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 
(Warren) 
 

4. Review and discuss proposed revisions to the Christmas in Rosenberg event, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. (McCarthy) 
 

5. Review and discuss merchandise prominently displayed at the site of sale, and take action as necessary 
to direct staff. (Benton) 
 

6. Review and discuss a comprehensive stop sign plan for the City, and take action as necessary to direct 
staff. (Benton) 
 

7. Review and discuss “long-term” parking of vehicles in front yards of area residences, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. (Benton) 
 

8. Review and discuss proposed amendment to Section 6-367 of the Code of Ordinances providing rules 
and regulations governing the painting of street numbers on curbs, and take action as necessary to 
direct staff. (Benton) 
 

9. Adjournment. 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  



2 of 2 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need 
of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

1 Proposed Ordinance No. 2014-08 – Sign Ordinance Amendments (Aves. 
H, I & SH 36) Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed Ordinance No. 2014-08, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections (a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to 
Section 6-362.2 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, providing for expanded boundaries of Sign District “B”; 
by adding a new Section 6-362.3 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, establishing Sign District “C” and 
regulations for Sign District “C”; by adding a new Section 6-362.4 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, 
establishing a Sign District map; providing a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this 
Code for violation of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or 
in conflict herewith; and providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-08 – Redline w/o Exhibit 
2. Ordinance No. 2014-08 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-18-14 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-26-13  
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-24-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director 
Community Development

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Ordinance was brought to City Council on February 18, 2014.  City Council directed staff to put the 
Ordinance on a future Workshop Agenda for further discussion.  The CCC executive summary report that 
was provided to City Council on February 18th is included in its entirety below. 
 
Freestanding sign regulations for height and area for Avenues H and I and State 
Highway 36 (between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H) have been discussed in two (2) previous City Council 
Workshop meetings:  once on September 24, 2013, and again on November 26, 2013.  In the most recent 
discussion on November 26, 2013, staff presented options for sign regulations for these corridors to City 
Council.  The most agreed-upon option involved designating the eastern parts of Avenues H and I as being 
included in previously-approved Sign District “B.”  These parts of the corridors have larger properties that 
could accommodate the larger signage allowed in District “B” (maximum of 16-foot/120 square foot single-
tenant signs and 24-foot/320 square foot multi-tenant signs).  Staff recommended that should City Council 
choose this option, the dividing lines for larger signage would be Miles and Mahlmann Streets.  This was 
due to the larger properties and shopping centers mostly being located to the east of these streets.  There 
was subsequent discussion and potential agreement on the dividing line being moved to the west to 8th 



Street with the exception properties located on the south side of Avenue I, which should have smaller 
signage due to more residences being located in the area. 
 
Staff has prepared an Ordinance amendment that we believe most reflects the discussion and consensus 
of City Council on November 26, 2013.  It can be summarized as follows: 
 
State Highway 36 between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H (not including Downtown); Avenue H between Spur 
529 and 8th Street (not including Downtown); Avenue I between Spur 529 and 8th Street (not including 
Downtown); and the south side of Avenue I between 8th and Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: twelve (12) feet  
o Maximum size:   sixty (60) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twelve (12) feet 
o Maximum size:   ninety-six (96) square feet 
o Maximum of sixty (60) square feet per tenant 

 
Avenue H east of 8th Street; Avenue I east of Mahlmann; and the north side of Avenue I between 8th and 
Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: sixteen (16) feet  
o Maximum size:   one-hundred twenty (120) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twenty-four (24) feet 
o Maximum size:   three-hundred twenty (320) square feet 
o Maximum of one-hundred twenty (120) square feet per tenant 

 
You will notice that the Downtown Area is not included in these recommendations.  This is because 
Downtown already has its own standards that do not allow freestanding signs.  This is due to the buildings 
mostly adjoining the right-of-way; thus the sites do not have yards for freestanding signs to be located in.  
No changes are recommended to the Downtown Area’s existing sign regulations.  In fact, Downtown has 
been discussed in previous meetings as potentially being Sign District “C” and Avenues H, I, and State 
Highway 36 as District “D”; however, because no changes are recommended to Downtown, staff does not 
see the need to create another sign district for it and therefore Avenues H, I & 36 are being designated as 
District “C.” 
 
Finally, due to the complexity of the Ordinance, staff has created a Sign District Map to make the 
Ordinance more user-friendly for staff and sign permit applicants.  The map is attached as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated in the Ordinance.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-08 in order to move 
forward with establishing permanent freestanding sign regulations for the corridors, as opposed to the 
current maximum height of nine (9) feet and maximum area of 36 square feet. 
 
At this time, staff is requesting direction from Council on any changes to the Ordinance before it is 
adopted. 
 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS (a)(4) 
AND (a)(7) AND BY ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (a)(8), (a)(9) AND 
(a)(10) TO SECTION 6-362.2 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 
THEREOF, PROVIDING FOR EXPANDED BOUNDARIES OF SIGN 
DISTRICT “B”; BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.3 OF ARTICLE XIII 
OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, ESTABLISHING SIGN DISTRICT “C” AND 
REGULATIONS FOR SIGN DISTRICT “C”; BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 6-362.4 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING A SIGN DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN 
AN AMOUNT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 1-13 OF THIS CODE FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 
amended by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections 
(a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to Section 6-362.2; by adding a new Section 6-362.3; and by 
adding a new Section 6-362.4 to Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof to provide as follows: 

“Sec. 6-362.2. - Sign District “B”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “B”, which shall include: 

 
(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2218; and 
 
(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2977; and 
 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 762; and 
 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 723 and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 
(5) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the sections of State Highway 36 that extend south of U.S. Highway 59 and 
north of U.S. Highway 90A; and 

 



2 

 

(6) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends west of Spur 529; and 

 
(7) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of Spur 529.; and 
 

(8) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends east of 8th Street; and 

 
(9) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 that extends east of Mahlmann Street; and 
 

(10) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the north side of 
the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be sixteen (16) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be one-hundred twenty (120) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twenty-four (24) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be three-hundred twenty (320) square feet. 

 
 (3)  The maximum size per individual tenant shall be one-hundred twenty (120) 

square feet. 
 
Sec. 6-362.3. - Sign District “C”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “C”, which shall include: 
 

(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of State Highway 36 between U.S. Highway 59 and U.S. Highway 
90A and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 

(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in 
the Downtown Area; and 

 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in the 
Downtown Area; and 

 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the south side of 

the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 



3 

 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be sixty (60) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be ninety-six (96) square feet. 

 
(3) The maximum size per individual tenant shall be sixty (60) square feet. 

 
Sec. 6-362.4. – Sign District Map. 
 
The Sign District Map, depicting Sign Districts “A,” “B,” and “C” and the Downtown Area of 
the City of Rosenberg, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for 
reference purposes.” 
 

Section 2. Any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount as 
provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate 
offense. 
 
 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 
Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason 
be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 
affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 
than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 
of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of ____________ 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



4 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 

 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS (a)(4) 
AND (a)(7) AND BY ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (a)(8), (a)(9) AND 
(a)(10) TO SECTION 6-362.2 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 
THEREOF, PROVIDING FOR EXPANDED BOUNDARIES OF SIGN 
DISTRICT “B”; BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.3 OF ARTICLE XIII 
OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, ESTABLISHING SIGN DISTRICT “C” AND 
REGULATIONS FOR SIGN DISTRICT “C”; BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 6-362.4 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING A SIGN DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN 
AN AMOUNT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 1-13 OF THIS CODE FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 
amended by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections 
(a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to Section 6-362.2; by adding a new Section 6-362.3; and by 
adding a new Section 6-362.4 to Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof to provide as follows: 

“Sec. 6-362.2. - Sign District “B”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “B”, which shall include: 

 
(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2218; and 
 
(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2977; and 
 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 762; and 
 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 723 and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 
(5) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the sections of State Highway 36 that extend south of U.S. Highway 59 and 
north of U.S. Highway 90A; and 

 



2 

 

(6) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends west of Spur 529; and 

 
(7) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of Spur 529; and 
 

(8) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends east of 8th Street; and 

 
(9) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 that extends east of Mahlmann Street; and 
 

(10) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the north side of 
the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be sixteen (16) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be one-hundred twenty (120) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twenty-four (24) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be three-hundred twenty (320) square feet. 

 
 (3)  The maximum size per individual tenant shall be one-hundred twenty (120) 

square feet. 
 
Sec. 6-362.3. - Sign District “C”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “C”, which shall include: 
 

(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of State Highway 36 between U.S. Highway 59 and U.S. Highway 
90A and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 

(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in 
the Downtown Area; and 

 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in the 
Downtown Area; and 

 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the south side of 

the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 



3 

 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be sixty (60) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be ninety-six (96) square feet. 

 
(3) The maximum size per individual tenant shall be sixty (60) square feet. 

 
Sec. 6-362.4. – Sign District Map. 
 
The Sign District Map, depicting Sign Districts “A,” “B,” and “C” and the Downtown Area of 
the City of Rosenberg, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for 
reference purposes.” 
 

Section 2. Any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount as 
provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate 
offense. 
 
 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 
Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason 
be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 
affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 
than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 
of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of ____________ 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



4 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 

 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!! !!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!! !!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!
!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!! !!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

RANSOM

WILLIAMS WAY

PITTS

N

D

1ST

BAND

J

RICEFIELD

HAND

G
F

DAILY

4TH

H

BE
RD

ET
T

E

KUNZ

HARTLEDGE

R

KOEBLEN

BRYAN

P O

BE
NT

ON

BLASE

RANDON SCHOOL

WEEKS

FINNEY VALLET

A

EVANS

SIM
S

LA
NE

POWERLINE

GERKEN

PULTAR

LO
UI

SE

PLEAK

A MEYERS

AIRPORTBLUME

B F
 TE

RR
Y

SCOTT

HAMLINK

RANDON DYER

BAKER

ROHAN

KLAUKE

KLOSTERHOFF
MUEGGE

J MEYER

WALSH

MILLER

ZUNKER

ANTON STADE

CLAY

KROESCHE

SPENCER

RICE

TO
RI

STEHLE

TWIN

VIS
TA

JUNKER

REESE

ROSE

JOERGER

WEHRING

BROOKS

ROBINOWITZ

WAGON

VINCIK EHLERT

READING

RIVER

CR
IS

LYLL
HUNTINGTON

STELLA

AU
RE

LIA
FAIRGROUNDS PISC

ES

KIOWA

WATERWALK

CE
CIL

 RO
BIN

OW
ITZ

BAUDET

PAR

HARDIN

HILLCREST

SYC
AM

OR
E

EASY

KARI
KUECK

FOSTER

BERNIE

PERRY

LEON

RUSTIC

LA
ZY

SAGAMORE BAY

POWER LINE

PETRA

DEER

1ST

KLAUKE

J

F

G

J

A

@A359

@A2977

@A762

@A2218

@A723

@A1640

@A3155

öõ10

öõ529

öõ540

£¤90A

£¤90A

§̈¦£¤96 592

MI
NO

NIT
E

I

¬«36

¬«36

Basemap Features
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad

Brazos River
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

Sign Districts
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Å

Û

N

S

EW

0 5,000 10,000
Feet

1 Inch = 4,500 Feet
or

1:54,000
Scale:

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 10, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\Sign_Districts.mxd
This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Sign Districts
District A
District B

District C
Downtown Area

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-08



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Review and discuss the FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   
101-5022-550-7030 
410-0000-550-7035 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Proposed FY2014 Street Paving Project List – 04-15-14 
2. Proposed FY2014 Street Paving Location Map  
3. Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 04-03-14 

 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
John Maresh 
 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Director of Economic Development  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In past years, the Public Works Department has submitted the list of streets to be overlaid and rebuilt to City 
Council for approval.  The list of streets for this fiscal year is attached for your review.  The Public Works 
Department has compiled a list of twenty-one (21) street sections.  The list includes two (2) streets to be rebuilt 
and nineteen (19) to be patched, leveled up and overlaid with hot-mix pavement.  The cost estimate for the 
recommended streets included on the Project List is $863,923.11. The FY2014 Budget includes $300,000.00, 
plus an additional $79,410.00 remains from the FY2011 Street Paving Program which was previously approved 
for Homestead Road in the Suburban Estates Subdivision. The streets located in the Suburban Estates 
Subdivision were deferred until such time the FM 2218 construction project was completed and a final 
determination was made regarding the traffic control measures that would be implemented. 
 
Staff presented a request to the Rosenberg Economic Development Corporation (RDC) to provide funding in the 
estimated amount of $133,865.00 (the cost estimate has since been revised to $140,673.61) for the 
reconstruction of Koeblen Road, which was annexed in 2013. More recently, a dirt mining operation was 
developed on property that is only accessible from Koeblen Road and the heavy truck traffic has caused 
considerable damage to the road. The RDC did take action to fund approximately one-third of the initial cost 
estimate ($44,621.00), leaving a balance of $96,052.61. RDC staff has also attempted to contact the operator of 
the dirt pit to discuss the opportunity for the business to partner with the City and RDC by providing a financial 
contribution toward the road reconstruction cost. As of the date of this report, staff has not had the opportunity to 
have this discussion.  
 
Due to the large amount of street repair and repaving work the City will have to address in future years. Staff 
recommends additional funding in the amount of $439,892.11 which will provide a total of $863,923.11. If City 
Council concurs, a budget adjustment will be presented at the May 06, 2014 meeting for approval. 
  
Staff recommends approval of the FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List as presented. 
 



City of Rosenberg
Proposed 2014 Street Paving Project ‐ 04/15/14

District Street Name Boundaries From ‐ To Dimensions Tons Asphalt Cost Milling Hauling
Gallons of Road 

Stabilizer  Price
Gallons of 
Prime Oil Price

Crushed 
Concrete Price

Pavement 
Marking Curb Repair

Concrete 
Raising Price

Grand Total per 
Street District Total

#1 West Street Avenue D ‐ Walnut 20' x 646' 242              13,552.00$        13,552.00$          
#1 Walnut Willow ‐ Mulcahy 22' x 1550' 639              35,784.00$        35,784.00$          
#1 Radio Lane Avenue H ‐ Avenue I 24' x 2020' 909              50,904.00$        50,904.00$          

DISTRICT TOTAL 100,240.00$   

#2 Mulcahy Street Avenue I ‐ Walger 20' x 3,366' 1,262          70,672.00$        70,672.00$          
#2 Blackwood Muegge ‐ Dead End 22' x 1475' 608              34,048.00$        34,048.00$          
#2 Cottonwood Hwy 59 ‐ City Limits 24' x 2425' 1,091          61,096.00$        10,350                 27,841.50$   88,937.50$          
#2 J. Meyer Road FM 2218 ‐ Seabourne Creek 22' x 1480' 610              34,160.00$        34,160.00$          
#2 Houston Street Avenue I ‐ Avenue K 22' x 700' 288              16,128.00$        16,128.00$          
#2 James Street Avenue I ‐ Avenue L 20' x 1045' 391              21,896.00$        21,896.00$          

DISTRICT TOTAL 265,841.50$   

#3 Avenue L Damon ‐ Dead End 28' x 375' 197              11,032.00$        11,032.00$          
#3 7th Street Avenue N ‐ Parrot Street 20' x 1270' 476              26,656.00$        26,656.00$          
#3 Avenue J Mahlmann ‐ Austin Street 22' x 2160' 891              49,896.00$        49,896.00$          

DISTRICT TOTAL 87,584.00$     

#4 Cartwright Grande Gables ‐ Dead End 22' x 640' 264              14,784.00$        14,784.00$          
#4 Heritage Haven Grande Gables ‐ Dead End 22' x 600' 247              13,832.00$        13,832.00$          
#4 Little Haven Grande Gables ‐ Dead End 22' x 470' 194              10,864.00$        10,864.00$          
#4 Grande Gables City Limits ‐ Dead End 22' x 4628' 1,909          106,904.00$      106,904.00$       
#4 Homestead Road FM 2218 ‐ Dead End 20' x 2450' 919              51,464.00$        51,464.00$          
#4 Lazy Lane Homestead ‐ Reading Road 20' x 1150' 431              24,136.00$        24,136.00$          
#4 Richard Street Homestead ‐ Reading Road 20' x 1135' 425              23,800.00$        23,800.00$          
#4 Allwright Homestead ‐ Reading Road 20' x 1135' 425              23,800.00$        23,800.00$          
#4 Koeblen Road FM 2218 to City Limits 24' x 4370' 1,295          72,520.00$        18,645                 50,155.05$   819 1,834.56$     1,200 16,164.00$      140,673.61$       

DISTRICT TOTAL 410,257.61$   

Total 13,713        767,928.00$      0 ‐$                28,995                 77,996.55$   819 1,834.56$    1,200 16,164.00$     0 ‐$               0 ‐$           863,923.11$       

GRAND TOTAL 863,923.11$   



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!! !!!!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!
!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

H

N

J

D

1ST

BAND

RICEFIELD

G

HAND

F

4TH

KUNZ

BE
RD

ET
T

R

L

KOEBLEN

BRYAN

P

HARTLEDGE

O

BE
NT

ON

A

EVANS

SIM
S

LA
NE

POWERLINE

LO
UI

SE

A MEYERS

E

AIRPORT

GERKEN

BLUME

SPA
CE

K

PLEAK

B F
 TE

RR
Y

SCOTT

BAKER

ROHAN

KLAUKE

PULTAR

MUEGGE

J MEYER

WALSH

CLAY

READING

KR
OE

SC
HE

RICE

KLOSTERHOFF

TO
RI

STEHLE

TWIN

VIS
TA

JUNKER

REESE

JOERGER

WILLIAMS WAY

WEHRING

BROOKS

WAGON

RIVER

CR
IS

HUNTINGTON

STELLA

AU
RE

LIA

PISC
ES

MARIAN

KIOWA

WATERWALK

CE
CIL

 RO
BIN

OW
ITZ

BAUDET

PAR
LINDSEY

MOORE BAR

HILLCREST

SYC
AM

OR
E

EASY

KUECK

FOSTER

BERNIE

PERRY

LEON

RUSTIC

C

SAGAMORE BAY

POWER LINE

PETRA

RYCHLIK

RUDE J

L

KLAUKE

A

1ST

@A2977@A2218

@A723

@A762

@A1640

@A3155

öõ529

£¤90A

SOUTHWEST FWY

36TH DIVISION MEMORIAL HWY

MI
NO

NIT
E

PL
EA

K V
ILL

AG
E

£¤90A

I

¬«36

HOMESTEAD

GRANDE GABLESBLACKWOOD

COTTONWOOD SCHOOL

MU
LC

AH
Y RA

DI
O

WEST

WE
ST

HOUSTON

HO
US

TO
N

JAM
ES

WALNUT

RANSOM

WILLIAMS WAY

@A359

§̈¦£¤96 592

1 Inch = 4,250 Feet

1:51,000

Proposed 2014 Street Paving
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 5,000 10,000
Feet

2014 Proposed Street Paving
Council Districts

District 1
District 2
District 3
District 4

Basemap Features
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad
Brazos River
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: April 16, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Streets\2014\Proposed_Paving.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW



 

 
PAGE 3 of 5 * REGULAR ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

April 3, 2014 

 
 

Action:  Director Scopel moved and Director Garcia seconded the motion to appoint Director Cook to the 
BAGP Review Committee. The motion passed unanimously by those present. 
 
 
4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY-WIDE GARAGE SALE, AND TAKE ACTION AS 

NECESSARY. (This item was taken out of order as Item No. 1) 
 
Key discussion: 

 Councilor William Benton requested that RDC consider participation in a city-wide garage sale. 
 Councilor Benton commented that the event could help “clean up” the City and encourage 

Economic Development as people shop and eat in Rosenberg. 
 Board concerns were voiced about the time and personnel necessary to organize an event of this 

size.  
 Other suggestions were to emphasize bulk pick-up days and recycling with additional advertising 

and increased support of the “Keep Rosenberg Beautiful” campaign. 
 
No action was taken. 

 
5. REVIEW AND DISCUSS KOEBLEN ROAD RECONSTRUCTION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 

NECESSARY. 
John Maresh opened the discussion by noting that Koeblen Road is heavily utilized by large trucks and 
has been damaged due to dirt hauling. He indicated that the road will require reconstruction. 

 
Key discussion points: 

 John Maresh reported about 4,000 feet of road is damaged.  
 Fort Bend County is going to be working on their section of the road, and the City has an 

opportunity to partner with the County to do the repairs and to share the cost. 
 

Action: Director Cook moved and Director Scopel seconded the motion that RDC fund one-half (½) of the 
cost of repairs to Koeblen Road in the amount of  $133,865 President Knesek, Directors Grigar and 
Garcia voted “No”. Directors Morales, Cook, and Scopel voted “Yes.” The motion failed due to lack of a 
majority vote. 
 
Action: Director Grigar moved and Director Garcia seconded the motion that RDC fund one-third (1/3) of 
the cost of repairs to Koeblen Road in the amount of $44,621.00.  Directors Cook and Scopel voted “No”. 
President Knesek, Directors Grigar, Garcia and Morales voted “Yes.” The motion passed. 
 
Note: The Board agreed by consensus to fund the Koeblen Road repairs from the Business Incentive line 
item. The Board also agreed by consensus to reconsider the possibility of awarding additional repair 
funding should additional funds be required. 
 
 
6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY OF ROSENBERG SIDEWALK PROJECTS, AND TAKE 

ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
 

Key discussion points: 
 President Knesek distributed copies of a proposed sidewalk plan. 
 President Knesek indicated the sidewalk improvements could potentially cost approximately 

$153,000.  
 President Knesek requested that Mr. Maresh bring the City’s sidewalk plan to the Board for their 

review in anticipation theaddition of further sidewalk improvements. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance 
2. Area Map – Drug Free Locations with 1,000 & 2,000 ft Buffers 
3. Proposed Sex Offender Registration Form 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
 
Dallis Warren 
Police Chief 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney  LJL/rl   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

City staff has seen an increase in the number of sex offenders currently registered in the City of 
Rosenberg. Currently there are minimal regulations pertaining to the residency of registered sex offenders. 
 
Staff is recommending the City consider an Ordinance that provides for greater oversight of registered sex 
offenders and restriction on residence locations for these offenders.   Should City Council direct staff to 
move forward, an Ordinance will be presented at a future City Council meeting for consideration and 
adoption.  
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

Proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance 
 

Sec. XX-XX. - Definitions. 

For the purposes of this section, the following words, terms and phrases when 
used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except 
where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Child sex offender means any offender subject to registration under state or 
federal law, or the Uniform Code of Military Justice or law of a foreign country, who has 
been convicted or received an order of deferred adjudication for a "sexual offense" 
involving a minor.  

City park for purposes of this chapter means land owned or controlled by a unit of 
local government which is designated by the unit of local government for use solely or 
primarily for children's recreation.   

City recreation center for purposes of this chapter means city recreational areas, 
including but not limited to soccer fields, baseballs fields and lakes under the jurisdiction 
of a unit of local government as amended from time to time.  

Habitual offender means any offender subject to registration under state law, who 
has for a "sexually violent offense" been convicted two (2) or more times, received an 
order of deferred adjudication two (2) or more times, or been convicted and received an 
order of deferred adjudication or any combination thereof and is required to verify every 
ninety (90) days in accordance with the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure art. 62.058.  

Minor means a person who is under the age of seventeen (17) years of age.  

Permanent residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for fourteen (14) or more consecutive days.  

Property owner means any owner of record, person who has contractual 
responsibility for the property, or person who has the legal right of possession of the 
property.  

Temporary residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for a period of fourteen (14) or more days in the aggregate during any calendar year 
and which is not the person's permanent address, or a place where a person routinely 
abides, resides, or lodges for a period of four (4) or more consecutive or 
nonconsecutive days in any month and which is not the person's permanent residence.  

Sec. XX-XX. - Offender residency prohibition.  
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

(1) For each person required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database because they are a “Habitual Offender” 
or a “Child Sex Offender”: 
 

(2) If a person is required by Chapter 62 of the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as amended, to register with a local law enforcement agency 
because of a violation involving a victim who was less than seventeen (17) 
years of age, it is unlawful for that person to establish a permanent 
residence or temporary residence within 2,000 feet of any premises where 
children commonly gather including but not limited to, any city park, city 
recreational center, a public or private school, child care facility, day care 
center, playground, public or private youth center, public swimming pool or 
video arcade facility, as those terms are defined in Sections 341.064 and 
481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended and Section 
42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

Sec. XX-XX. - Evidentiary matters; measurements.  

(1) It shall be prima facie evidence that this chapter applies to such a person 
if that person's record appears on the database and the database 
indicates that the person is required to verify every ninety (90) days in 
accordance with Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Section 62.058, as 
amended. For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a 
"habitual offender."  

(2) It shall be prima facie evidence that this section applies to such a person if 
that person's record appears on the database and the database indicates 
that the person is subject to registration for an offense involving a minor. 
For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a "child sex 
offender."  

(3) For the purposes of determining the minimum distance separation, the 
requirement shall be measured by following a straight line from the outer 
property line of the permanent or temporary residence to the nearest 
property line of the premises where children commonly gather, as 
described hereinabove. In the case of multiple residences on one (1) 
property, measurement is from the nearest wall of the building or occupied 
structure or the parking/driveway, whichever is closer to the nearest 
property line of the premises to the nearest property line of the premises 
where children commonly gather, as described herein.  



Page 3 of 4 
 

(4) The city will maintain a map depicting the prohibited areas. The city shall 
annually review the map annually, for changes. Said map will be available 
to the public, at the city police department.  

(5) In cases of a dispute over measured distances, it shall be incumbent upon 
the person(s) challenging the measurement to prove otherwise.  

(6) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to modify or reduce the state's 
child safety ban.  

Sec. XX-XX. - Property owners prohibited from renting real property to sexual 
offenders.  

It is unlawful to let or rent any place, structure or part thereof, manufactured 
home or trailer, with the knowledge that it will be used as a permanent residence or 
temporary residence by any person prohibited from establishing such permanent 
residence or temporary residence pursuant to the terms of this chapter, if such place, 
structure or part thereof, manufactured home, trailer, or other conveyance, is located 
within two thousand (2,000) feet of any premises where children commonly gather, 
including but not limited to, any city park, city recreational center, a public or private 
school, child care facility, day care center, playground, public or private youth center, 
public swimming pool or video arcade facility, as those terms are defined in Sections 
341.064 and 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended and Section 
42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

 
Sec. XX-XX. - Affirmative defenses. 
 

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution that any of the following conditions 
apply:  

(1) The person required to register on the database established the 
permanent or temporary residence and has complied with all of the sex 
offender registration laws of the state, prior to the date of the adoption of 
the ordinance codified in this section;  

(2) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and was not 
convicted as an adult;  

(3) The person is a minor; 

(4) The premises where children commonly gather, as specified herein, within 
two thousand feet (2,000) of the permanent or temporary residence of the 
person required to register on the database was opened, established or 



Page 4 of 4 
 

created after the date the person had established the permanent or 
temporary residence and complied with all sex offender registration laws 
of the state; or  

(5) The information on the database is incorrect, and if corrected, this chapter 
section would not apply to the person.  

Sec. XX-XX. - Posting of signs. 

(1) Every child sex offender and/or habitual sex offender, regardless of 
whether the adjudication was deferred, shall place and permanently 
maintain a sign at all times, within twenty (20) feet of the front entrance to 
their permanent or temporary residence that indicates that a registered 
sex offender resides in the residence.  The sign's legibility must be 
maintained at all times. The sign shall have at least two-inch lettering 
stating "SEXUAL OFFENDER RESIDENCE".  The City of Rosenberg shall 
provide the required sign to the child sex offender and/or the habitual sex 
offender. 

(2) Exceptions.  A person is exempt from this provision, and does not commit 
a violation of this subchapter if any of the following apply: 

(a) The person committed the offense described above prior to the 
date of adoption of this subchapter and has complied with all sex 
offenders registration laws of the State of Texas; 
 

(b) The person established the permanent or temporary residence prior 
to the date of the adoption of this subchapter and has complied with 
all the sex offender registration laws of the State of Texas;  
 

(c) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and 
was not convicted as an adult; or 
 

(d) The person is a minor. 

Sec. XX-XX - Violation – Penalty. 
 

Any firm, corporation, or person who violates any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon a conviction shall be 
subject to a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code. 

 
Secs. XX-XX – XX-XX. – Reserved.” 
 
 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂ _̂

_̂ _̂

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GGGG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

Brazos Park

Travis Park

Sunset Park

Harwood Park
Riverbend ParkCommunity Park

Macario Garcia Park

Seabourne Creek Nature Park

Seabourne Creek Sports Complex

WILLIAMS WAY

PERSIM
M

ON
CLEISTES

M
AJESTIC OAK

CE
M

ET
ER

Y

DEL W
EBB

H

N

J

D

1ST

G

F

K

4T
H

L

R

P

O

BRYAN

A

M

KOEBLEN

B
EN

TO
N

B
A

M
O

R
E

LA
N

E

BAND

E

6T
H

8T
H

LO
U

IS
E

7T
H

5T
H

AIRPORT

B
LU

M
E

SP
A

CE
K

C

B
 F

 T
ER

RY

B

SCO
T

T

MONS

RICEFIELD

ROHAN

KLAUKE

W
A

R
D

J MEYER

W
A

LS
H

LA
M

A
R

OLD R
IC

HM
OND

R
A

D
IO

R
EA

D
IN

G2N
D

COTTONW
OOD SCHOOL

MUSTANG

RICE

K
R

O
ES

CH
E

TO
R

I

JO
NES

WALNUT

W
E

ST

GOLFVIEW

V
IS

TA

JU
N

K
ER

A
LA

M
O

STEHLE

REESE

B
A

K
ER

WILLIAMS WAY

W
EHRING

BROOKS

CR
IS

LO
N

G

R
IV

ER

TIMBER

CAY

CO
LE

IRBY COBB

COON

H
U

N
T

IN
G

T
O

N

STELLA

CUMINGS

A MEYERS

3R
D

FA
IR

G
R

O
U

N
D

S
PIS

CES

D
A

M
O

N

MEADOW

SALLY ANNE PAR

M
ILLIE

SOUTHGATE

M
O

O
R

E B
A

R

SY
CA

M
O

R
E

EASY

HILLCREST

KLARE

WILSON

T
O

B
O

LA

W
IN

ST
O

N

FOSTER

LA
R

K

BERNIE

COMMERCIAL

HOMESTEAD

R
U

ST
IC

GERONIMO

LA
ZY

G
R

A
EB

ER

DOW
LING

SHADY OAKS

LEAMAN

COTTONW
OOD CHURCH

PETRA

R
AV

EN

D
IV

IN

R
U

D
E

POW
ERLINE

RYCHLIK

G
EO

R
G

IN
A

RIV
ERW

OOD

BRAZOS TOWN

QUEBEC

LA
W

R
EN

CE

STONERIDGE

CALVIN

WALENTA

LO
R

Y

AUSTIN

H
ER

N
D

O
N

R
U

B
Y

SPRUCE

NAVAJO

RIPPLE CREEK

M
A

H
LM

A
N

N

DAVIS

D
AV

ID

BERNARD

SUMMERDALE

VERA CRUZ

M
EB

A
N

E

PARMA

MUEGGE

MAGNOLIA

H
EM

PL
E

DAN
ZIGER

M
U

LCA
H

Y

COTTER

CALLENDER

WOODWAY

ELIZABETH

M
AZEN

GREENWOOD

CED
A

R

S VILLAGE CLUB

CH
U

P
IK

TAYLAN

JEN
N

ET
TA

CA
R

D
IN

A
L

RAY A
LLEN

HETTIE

M
ILES

CUSTER

H
ILL

WILBURN

R
IC

H
A

R
D

ELM

HAWTHORN

LIVE OAK

RED
 C

ED
AR

TA
LA

SE
K

D
EB

B
IE

P
R

A
IR

IE

TOW
N CENTERREDBUD

ARM
ADIL

LO

ATHEA

CANYON HILL

CHESTNUT

A
LL

W
R

IG
H

T

REINHARD

PECHA

SILV
ER

A
D

O

PARKWAY

CY
P

R
ESS

AUGUST GREEN

SEQ
U

O
IA

JEFFERSON

HOBIZ
AL

LO
N

G
H

O
R

N

WILLOW

SILENT DEEP

CITY HALL

IDA

BU
TT

ER
FL

Y

SIDNEY

GRILLO

WILDBRIAR
JACKRABBIT

WASHINGTON

MATAMOROS

TA
N

G
LELAN

E

SA
N

 CA
R

LO
S

V
ICT

O
R

IA

CL
O

V
ER

 L
EA

F

W
IN

NIP
EG

VANCOUVER

BLUE LAKE

R
AW

SO
N

MAIN

LA
W

DOGWOOD

CORTEZ

AY
A

LA

LLO
Y

D

RIC
HW

OOD

W
IN

D
IN

G
 LA

K
ES

SH
A

N
E

H
O

R
A

CE M
A

N
N

H
EL

EN

BAYOU

BELM
ONT

M
YS

TE
R

IU
M

K
EP

LE
R

S

P
IN

E

JASMINE

H
A

B
ITAT

LU
B

O
JA

C
K

Y

SU
M

M
ER

 P
A

R
K

KOVAR

KANE

M
EA

D
OW

BEN
D

JU
NIP

ER D
ALE

HAPPY

HIGH
 RIDGE

METAPHOR

SALADO SLOUGH

TEAKWOOD

SU
N

SH
IN

E 
M

ED
LE

Y

B
EN

T
 R

AY

COFFEE MILL CREEK

A
LD

ER
N

EY

BUTLER LAKES
SUMMER LAKE PASS

SU
M

M
ER

 B
R

EEZE

2N
D

3R
D

1ST

N

O

CR
IS

LO
U

ISE

CED
A

R

7T
H

B

O

4T
H

BROOKS

L

M
ILES

P

K

JU
NKER

7T
H

F

3R
D

4T
H

8T
H

BRYAN

G

BERNIE

A
U

ST
IN

3R
D

L

M

W
E

ST

LEAMAN

3R
D

M
EAD

O
W

VERA CRUZ

2N
D

K

KLAUKE

CYPRESS

ELM

6T
H

5T
H

A

G

E

B
A

M
O

R
E

2N
D

J

G

READING

ELIZABETH

R

O

C

W
E

ST

M

E

A
LA

M
O

LEAMAN

L

@A2218

@A2977

@A762

@A1640

@A723

öõ529

£¤90A

§̈¦£¤96 592

§̈¦£¤96 592

öõ529

¬«36

£¤90A

M
IN

O
N

IT
E

PL
EA

K
 V

IL
LA

G
E

H
O

U
ST

O
N

SOUTHWEST FWY

36TH DIVISION MEMORIAL HWY

SOUTHWEST FWY

I

T
H

O
M

PSO
N

H
O

U
ST

O
N

1ST

@A2218

¬«36

¬«36

Drug Free Locations with 1000 ft & 2000 ft Buffers
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Created by: Paul M. Jones

                       City of Rosenberg GIS

Date Created: March 06, 2014.

Original Size: 24" x 36"

K:\GIS\MAPS\Police\2014\DFZ_2000ft_24x36_Alt.mxd

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be

suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-

the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of features.

Å

Û

N

S

EW

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000
Feet

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1
Miles

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Farm-to-Market

Public Road

Railroad

Brazos River

GG Sex Offender Residential Locations

_̂ City Parks

Drug Free Locations

1000 ft Buffer

2000 ft Buffer

Rosenberg City Limits

Rosenberg ETJ1:13,500

Scale:

or

1 inch = 1,125 feet







CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Proposed Changes to Christmas In Rosenberg Discussion 
 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Review and discuss proposed revisions to the Christmas in Rosenberg event, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

212-1900-540-5325 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 

 
1. PowerPoint Presentation: Rosenberg Christmas Nights 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   
 

 
Darren McCarthy 
Parks and Recreation 
Director   

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Economic Development Director  

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council:   
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to review and discuss, with City Council, proposed changes to the 
Christmas in Rosenberg event. 
  
 



……



Bringing the lights of the holidaysBringing the lights of the holidays

b…to Downtown Rosenberg



Th h f l d hThree Nights of Holiday Cheer



A Sip-and-Stroll through 
downtown shops



A tree-lighting ceremony

A family-friendly, 
h lid  iholiday movie



Pictures with 
lSanta Claus

Holiday theatre Holiday theatre 
performancep f



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Merchandise Displayed at Site of Sale Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss merchandise prominently displayed at the site of sale, and take action as necessary 
to direct staff.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Sugar Land Code Excerpt – Chapter 2, Article II, Part 12. General Business District (B-2) 
 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
William Benton/rl 
 
William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position One 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss regulations that 
might govern merchandise prominently displayed at the site of sale on a regular or long term basis.  
 
Attached you will find a copy of the current Code regarding garage sales.  
 
Additionally, it was requested that City staff research the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance related to this 
issue.  Sugar Land’s Zoning Ordinance provides for merchandise to be temporarily displayed or stored 
outside the Building on the same premises if the merchandise:  

• Is not located on public property or within a required Parking Space or Yard; 
• Is not displayed or stored outside for more than 30 consecutive days or for more than 90 days 

within one calendar year;  
• Is owned by the owner or lessee of the Building; and 
• Does not occupy a contiguous area in of excess of 10% of the ground Floor Area of the Building or 

tenant space of the business displaying or storing the merchandise. The 10% restriction does not 
apply to landscaping materials for retail nurseries or lawn and garden supply stores, if displayed 
within a fenced area. 

 
The ordinance is attached for reference. 
 



‐ SUPPLEMENT HISTORY TABLE 
Chapter 2 ‐ ZONING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. ‐ ZONING DISTRICTS AND LAND USES 

PART 12. GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B‐2) 

  Sugar Land, Texas, Land Development Code  Page 1 

PART 12. GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-2) 
Sec. 2-141. Statement of Intent. 

Sec. 2-142. Permitted Uses. 

Sec. 2-143. District Regulations. 

Secs. 2-144—2-148. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 2-141. Statement of Intent. 

The General Business district allows the development of a variety of general commercial uses 
including wholesale sales and services with restrictions. Limited outdoor storage and display of 
merchandise is permitted in this district as an Accessory Use to the principal use. The B-2 district is 
dependent on high traffic volumes and locations along or adjacent to arterial Streets and, thus, is 
appropriate for the development of most shopping centers.  

Sec. 2-142. Permitted Uses. 

As shown in the Land Use Classification Matrix.  

Sec. 2-143. District Regulations. 

The following regulations apply in the General Business District:  

(a) Maximum Height of Structures: 

- 100 ft. above finished grade  

- Over 100 ft. with a conditional use permit  

- Bulk plane requirements in (f).  

(b) Minimum Yards: 

(1) Front: 

- 25 feet.  

- 40 feet on arterial Streets or highways.  

(2) Side and Rear: 

- 10 feet if abutting a Nonresidential District or R-4  

- A yard is not required where the common wall of a building is located on a shared rear or side 
lot line of two lots abutting a Nonresidential District or R-4.  

- 25 feet if abutting a Residential District other than R-4.  



‐ SUPPLEMENT HISTORY TABLE 
Chapter 2 ‐ ZONING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. ‐ ZONING DISTRICTS AND LAND USES 

PART 12. GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B‐2) 

  Sugar Land, Texas, Land Development Code  Page 2 

- 40 feet on arterial Streets or highways.  

(c) Minimum Parking Lot Setbacks:  

- 25 feet from Street Side Lot Lines.  

(d) Minimum Open Space:  

- 15% of Lot Area.  

(e) Outside Use:  

-  Merchandise may be temporarily displayed or stored outside the Building on the same premises if 
the merchandise:  

(1) Is not located on public property or within a required Parking Space or Yard; 

(2) Is not displayed or stored outside for more than 30 consecutive days or for more than 90 days 
within one calendar year;  

(3) Is owned by the owner or lessee of the Building; and 

(4) Does not occupy a contiguous area in of excess of 10% of the ground Floor Area of the Building 
or tenant space of the business displaying or storing the merchandise. The 10% restriction does 
not apply to landscaping materials for retail nurseries or lawn and garden supply stores, if 
displayed within a fenced area.  

(f) Bulk Plane. If any portion of a proposed building is within 500 linear feet of a Residential District, 
other than R-4, the building may not extend beyond the Bulk Plane formed by a bulk plane ratio of a 
setback of 2 feet for each 1 foot in height over 24 feet.  

(Ord. No. 1305, §§ 3, 8, 11-6-01; Ord. No. 1607, § 3, 2-20-07)  

Secs. 2-144—2-148. Reserved. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Proposed Stop Sign Plan Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss a comprehensive stop sign plan for the City, and take action as necessary to direct 
staff.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Section 28-26 
2. Friendswood, Texas – Multi-Way Stop Application, R-1 Series Warrant Worksheet 
3. Pasadena, Texas – Fax of Stop Sign Regulations 
4. Sugar Land, Texas – Stop Signs Brochure 
5. Richardson, Texas – Stop Sign Requests 
6. Irvine, Texas – Website Excerpt – Stop Signs 
7. Grand Forks, North Dakota – Website Excerpt – Stop Signs 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

William Benton/rl 
 
William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position One 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss the potential of 
establishing a comprehensive stop sign plan. You will find a copy of the applicable Code Section and along 
with examples of policies from several other cities. 
 



Code of Ordinances 
DIVISION 1. TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, GENERALLY 
 

Sec. 28-26. Conformity with state specifications; uniformity. 

All traffic control signs, signals, and devices shall conform to the manual and specifications 
approved by the state department of highways and public transportation. All signs and signals 
required under this chapter for a particular purpose shall, so far as practicable, be uniform as to type 
and location throughout the city. All traffic control devices so erected hereafter and consistent with 
the provisions of state law or this chapter shall be official traffic control devices. All traffic control 
devices in existence prior to the date of adoption of this section shall be exempt from the effect of 
this section.  

(Ord. No. 95-08, § 1, 3-21-95)  
 



Page 1 of 4   multi-way stop form   03/14/05 

MULTI-WAY STOP APPLICATIONS, R-1 SERIES 
Warrant Worksheet 

 

Study Location:  ___________________________________________________ 

Study Date:  ___________________________________________________ 

Study Conducted by: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 
Authorization 
The installation or removal of multi-way stop control shall be authorized when an engineering / traffic 
study indicates that such methods of control, or rearrangement of such control, are warranted to improve 
safety or capacity of the street system.  
 
Multi-way stop control can be a useful safety measure at intersections if certain traffic conditions exist.  
Safety concerns associated with multi-way stops include pedestrians, bicyclists, and all road users 
expecting other road users to stop.  Multi-way stop control is used where the volume of traffic on the 
intersecting roads is approximately equal.  Multi-way stop signs should not be installed where they may 
be ignored by drivers, needlessly interrupt traffic flow or otherwise pose an undue risk to the public.  
Absent engineering data which establishes a need for multi-way stop control, the traffic control at the 
intersection shall remain unchanged. 
 
The Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices restrictions on the use of stop signs also apply to 
multi-way stop applications, and state that stop signs are not to be used for speed control. 
 
Elements of Engineering / Traffic Study 
The following elements shall be considered, as applicable, in every engineering and traffic study 
pertaining to stop control or multi-way stop control:  
 
(1)  Accident analysis 
(2)  Geometric review  
(3)  Sight distance 
(4)  Traffic volumes 
(5)  Roadway 85th percentile speed 
 
 
Background 

Speed Limit  85th Percentile Speed 
 
Major Street:    
 
Minor Street:    

reneel
Text Box
Friendswood, Texas



Page 2 of 4   multi-way stop form   03/14/05 

For each condition, the major and minor streets information shall be for the same eight (8) hours. 
 

 Major Street Minor Street 
Time 
Ends 

Both Approaches Both Approaches 

 Vehicles Pedestrians Vehicles Pedestrians 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
Comments: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Warrants 
Stop control and multi-way stop control may be considered at an intersection when one or more of the 
following conditions exist:  
 
 
Criteria A: Interim Traffic Control.  Where traffic control signals are justified, the multi-way stop is an 
interim measure that can be installed quickly to control traffic while arrangements are being made for the 
installation of a traffic control signal. 
 

(1)  Has a traffic control signal been justified for this intersection? 
 

  YES _____ NO _____ 
 
 (2)  Is a multi-way stop sign needed for interim traffic control? 
 
   YES _____ NO _____ 
 
Criteria A met? YES _____ NO _____ 
 
 
Criteria B: Accident Analysis.  Multi-way stop control is often effective in reducing some types of 
accidents, such as right-angle and turning collisions.  The following criteria must be met: 
 

(1) Have there been five (5) or more accidents susceptible to correction by a multi-way stop 
sign in twelve (12) months, including only personal injury and property damage on a 
filed report? 

 



Page 3 of 4   multi-way stop form   03/14/05 

   YES _____ NO _____ 
 
Criteria B met? YES _____ NO _____ 
 
 
Criteria C: Eight (8) Hour Minimum Volumes.  If the 85th-percentile approach speed of the major-
street traffic exceeds 40 mph (64 kph), the minimum vehicular volume warrants are seventy percent 
(70%) of the values indicated below. 
 

(insert street name) (insert street name) 
Major St. – Both Approaches (Vehicles) 8th 

Highest Hour 
Minor St. – Both Approaches (Vehicles/Pedestrians) 

8th Highest Hour 
Required Existing Required Existing 

100% 80% 70% _____ % 100% 80% 70% _____ %
300 240 210  200 160 140  

 
(1) The vehicular volume entering from the major street approaches (total of both approaches) 
average at least 300 vehicles per hour for any eight (8) hour period of a typical day: 
 
  YES _____ NO ______ 
 
(2a) The combined vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle volume entering the intersection from the 
minor street approaches (total of both approaches) average at least 200 units per hour for the same 
eight (8) hours above: 
 
  YES _____ NO ______ 
 
(2c) There is an average delay of thirty (30) seconds or more for vehicular traffic on the minor 
street during the highest hour: 
 
  YES _____ NO _____ 

 
Criteria C met? YES _____ NO _____ 
 
 
Criteria D: Combination of Criteria.  When no single criterion is satisfied, but where Criteria B, C.1, 
and C.2 are all satisfied to eight percent (80%) of the minimum values.  Criteria 2c is excluded from this 
consideration under Criteria D. 
 
Criteria D met? YES _____ NO _____ 
 
 
Criteria E: Additional Criteria.  Additional criteria that may be considered in an engineering study are 
as follows. 
 

(1)  Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able to 
safely negotiate the intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop: 

 
Sight distance required: __________ Sight distance provided: __________ 

 



Page 4 of 4   multi-way stop form   03/14/05 

   YES _____ NO _____ 
 

(2)  The need to control conflicting left-turn conflicts: 
 
   YES _____ NO _____ 
 

(3)  The need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near locations that generate high pedestrian 
volumes: OR, 

 
  YES _____ NO _____ 

 
(4)  An intersection of two (2) residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar 
design and operating characteristics where multi-way stop control would improve traffic 
operational characteristics of the intersection. 

 
  YES _____ NO _____ 

 
Criteria E met? YES _____ NO _____ 
 

 

Multi-way Stop Control Warranted: YES   or NO 

 
Comments:___________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
Approved  /  Denied 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________ 
Morad Kabiri, PE, AICP   Date 
City Engineer 
 
 
 

*PLEASE ATTACH AN AERIAL MAP OF THE INTERSECTION BEING REVIEWED* 





























CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Vehicle Parking in Front Yards Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss “long-term” parking of vehicles in front yards of area residences, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Sugar Land Code Excerpt – Chapter 5, Article IV, Division 6 – Stopping and Parking 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

William Benton/rl 
 
William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position One 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss “long-term” parking 
of vehicles in front yards of area residences, and the potential addition of guidelines regarding same. 
 
It was requested that City staff research the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance related to this issue.  Sugar 
Land prohibits the parking of vehicles on unimproved surfaces in front and side yards in residential zoning 
districts.  There is an exception to the ordinance for cases where the vehicle has been parked on an 
unimproved surface prior to the effective date of the ordinance.  The ordinance is attached for reference.   
 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 5 ‐ PUBLIC PROPERTY AND SERVICES 

ARTICLE IV. ‐ TRAFFIC 

DIVISION 6. STOPPING AND PARKING 

  Sugar Land, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

Sec. 5-141. Prohibited off-street parking in residential districts. 

(a) Definitions. In this section:  

Improved surface means an area used for the parking of vehicles that is overlaid or otherwise paved 
with concrete or asphalt and accessed by a street driveway approach.  

Motor vehicle means a self-propelled device in, upon, or by which, any person or property is or may 
be transported.  

Recreational vehicle means a portable vehicle designed primarily for temporary occupancy or use for 
travel, recreation, and vacation use, and includes boats, travel and tent trailers, pickup campers and 
shells, motorized travel homes and similar vehicles.  

Trailer means a vehicle that:  

(1) Is designed or used to carry a load wholly on the trailer's own structure; and 

(2) Is drawn or designed to be drawn by a motor vehicle. 

Unimproved driveway means a private, continuous surface that is constructed with gravel, crushed 
stone, or other equivalent material and provides ingress and egress for vehicles from an off-street parking 
area, such as a garage or carport, to an adjacent street, alley, or other improved public way.  

(b) It is unlawful for any person to stop or park a motor vehicle, recreational vehicle, or trailer within the 
front and side yards of a residential property upon any surface other than an improved surface.  

(c) Affirmative defense. It is an affirmative defense to a violation of this section that:  

(1) The person stopped or parked the vehicle on an unimproved driveway of a residential property; 
and  

(2) The unimproved driveway was in existence prior to the effective date of this section. 

(d) All new construction of off-street parking areas commenced on or after the effective date of this 
section must adhere to sections 2-206 and 2-168 of the Development Code.  

(Ord. No. 1845, § 1, 2-7-2012)  

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 22, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Proposed Curb Painting Amendments Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed amendments to Section 6-367 of the Code of Ordinances providing rules 
and regulations governing the painting of street numbers on curbs, and take action as necessary to direct 
staff.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Section 6-367 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-01-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

William Benton/rl 
 
William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position One 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 01, 2014, City Council held discussions regarding the potential of amending the City’s curb-
painting regulations to include the Texas flag. 
 
This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss the potential 
amendment of the rules and regulations governing the painting of street numbers on curbs.  You will find a 
copy of the current Code Section 6-367 attached for your information and review. 
 



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS  
ARTICLE XIII. SIGN REGULATIONS  
 

Sec. 6-367. Painting street numbers on city curbs. 

The public works director or his designee is hereby authorized to issue a permit for limited periods 

of time, not exceeding ninety (90) days, stated in the permit, authorizing the permittee to paint street 

numbers, according to the specific standards set forth below, on the curb showing the correct street number 

of abutting property. Such permit shall be expressly conditioned upon the permittee's obtaining the consent 

of the abutting property owner before painting the address applicable to such abutting property, and such 

permit shall be revocable by the public works director or his designee upon violation of this section. Prior to 

issuance of a permit hereunder, a permittee shall be required to pay a permit fee of twenty-five dollars 

($25.00). A property owner may paint street numbers on the city curb abutting his or her private property in 

accordance with specifications hereinafter provided, but shall be exempt from the requirement of obtaining a 

permit and payment of the twenty-five dollar ($25.00) permit fee.  

All street numbers shall be written in a block numbering style, shall be four (4) inches in height, and 

the width shall be in proportion to the height or approximately two and one-half (2½) inches in width. A one-

inch distance shall be maintained between figures. The color of the painted street curb shall be a reflective 

paint with black numbers on a white background. The background shall be rectangular in shape and should 

not extend more than one (1) inch above and below the numbers and not more than two (2) inches on each 

side. The rectangular background shall be no more than twenty (20) inches in length. No other letters, 

symbols, or emblems shall be painted on city curbs. The street numbers shall be positioned in front of the 

abutting property designated by such street number.  

Painted street numbers, including flags and other symbols, existing on the date of adoption of this 

section, nonconforming to the requirements hereof, shall be permitted, provided that any future painting of 

street numbers on the curb shall be in accordance with the requirements of this section; however, if a curb 

has been painted with a name in violation of this section, then the property owner shall have ninety (90) 

days, from the date this section is adopted, to remove such name. If a property owner fails to remove any 

name in violation of this section within the ninety-day time period specified above, then the property owner 

will be in violation of this section and the city may take any necessary action to remove the painted name in 

violation of this section.  

(Ord. No. 2011-07, § 1, 5-3-11)  

 



PAGE 8 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 1, 2014
***DRAFT***

� Joyce Vasut stated that only Council Members are allowed to ask questions.
� Councilor McConathy stated some perimeters need to be established.
� Mayor Morales stated a format needs to be established. He feels like we have a committee 

setup with committee members that work with our Finance Director. This needs to be 
treated like any other committee and others could apply for it.

� Robert Gracia, City Manager suggested that Council may want to consider the number of 
volunteers and setup guidelines and accept applications and go through an interview 
process.

� No action was taken on the item.

9. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 6-367 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PAINTING OF 
STREET NUMBERS ON CURBS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss the potential amendment of the rules and regulations governing the painting 
of street numbers on curbs.  You will find a copy of the current Code Section 6-367 attached for 
your information and review.

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton asked for Council input amending the ordinance to allow the painting of 

the Texas flag on curbs. 
� Mayor Morales asked about the Home Owners’ Associations (HOA’s).
� Tonya Palmer, Building Official stated curb painting is enforced by the City not the HOA’s.
� Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney pointed out that when you start carving out areas and 

colleges, etc., you are regulating signage and you are treading on a tight rope. You cannot 
say only the Texas flag is allowed. People are very creative and they come up with other 
types of signage.

� Councilor McConathy stated if the numbers are clearly painted for first responders she can 
support it. She is in favor of the Texas flag.

� Councilor Bolf agreed she can support the Texas flag if it is clearly marked for first 
responders but no murals all the way down the curb.

� Councilor Grigar stated with this ordinance if you painted the Texas flag and address would 
it be in compliance with the ordinance? With the specifications in our City Code for the 
lettering, there would not be room left to paint the Texas flag.

� Councilor Euton asked if someone wanted to paint on the driveway would it be in violation 
of the code. 

� Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development stated this ordinance 
applies to city curb only. He is not aware of any rules but it would probably fall under the 
HOA.

� Wade Goates, Fire Chief stated he does not have a problem with the Texas flag but from 
first responders point he would caution about night reflection. Our main concern is visibility 
and we want the numbers clear with a white background with reflective material. 

� Dallis Warren, Police Chief reiterated the need for the numbers to be clear for visibility.
� Mayor Morales stated the numbers need to be where they are today regarding size. There 

needs to be some design graphics on this.
� Councilor Euton stated this needs to be discussed at a workshop. The ones out there now 

may not be in compliance with the ordinance. 
� The item will be brought back to a workshop.
� No action was taken on the item.

10. CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION.
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to adjourn for 
Executive Session at 7:03 p.m. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present.



PAGE 8 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 1, 2014
***DRAFT***

� Joyce Vasut stated that only Council Members are allowed to ask questions.
� Councilor McConathy stated some perimeters need to be established.
� Mayor Morales stated a format needs to be established. He feels like we have a committee 

setup with committee members that work with our Finance Director. This needs to be 
treated like any other committee and others could apply for it.

� Robert Gracia, City Manager suggested that Council may want to consider the number of 
volunteers and setup guidelines and accept applications and go through an interview 
process.

� No action was taken on the item.

9. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 6-367 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PAINTING OF 
STREET NUMBERS ON CURBS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss the potential amendment of the rules and regulations governing the painting 
of street numbers on curbs.  You will find a copy of the current Code Section 6-367 attached for 
your information and review.

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton asked for Council input amending the ordinance to allow the painting of 

the Texas flag on curbs. 
� Mayor Morales asked about the Home Owners’ Associations (HOA’s).
� Tonya Palmer, Building Official stated curb painting is enforced by the City not the HOA’s.
� Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney pointed out that when you start carving out areas and 

colleges, etc., you are regulating signage and you are treading on a tight rope. You cannot 
say only the Texas flag is allowed. People are very creative and they come up with other 
types of signage.

� Councilor McConathy stated if the numbers are clearly painted for first responders she can 
support it. She is in favor of the Texas flag.

� Councilor Bolf agreed she can support the Texas flag if it is clearly marked for first 
responders but no murals all the way down the curb.

� Councilor Grigar stated with this ordinance if you painted the Texas flag and address would 
it be in compliance with the ordinance? With the specifications in our City Code for the 
lettering, there would not be room left to paint the Texas flag.

� Councilor Euton asked if someone wanted to paint on the driveway would it be in violation 
of the code. 

� Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development stated this ordinance 
applies to city curb only. He is not aware of any rules but it would probably fall under the 
HOA.

� Wade Goates, Fire Chief stated he does not have a problem with the Texas flag but from 
first responders point he would caution about night reflection. Our main concern is visibility 
and we want the numbers clear with a white background with reflective material. 

� Dallis Warren, Police Chief reiterated the need for the numbers to be clear for visibility.
� Mayor Morales stated the numbers need to be where they are today regarding size. There 

needs to be some design graphics on this.
� Councilor Euton stated this needs to be discussed at a workshop. The ones out there now 

may not be in compliance with the ordinance. 
� The item will be brought back to a workshop.
� No action was taken on the item.

10. CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION.
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to adjourn for 
Executive Session at 7:03 p.m. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present.



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 9 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	City Council Workshop Meeting Agenda - 04-22-14
	1 - Proposed Ordinance No. 2014-08 - Sign Ordinance Amendments Discussion
	Ordinance No. 2014-08 - Redline w/o Exhibit
	Ordinance No. 2014-08
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-18-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-26-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-24-13

	2 - FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List Discussion
	Proposed FY2014 Street Paving Project List - 04-15-14
	Proposed FY2014 Street Paving Location Map
	Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-03-14

	3 - Proposed Sex Offender Ordinance Discussion
	Proposed "Sex Offender" Ordinance
	Area Map - Drug Free Locations with 1,000 & 2,000 ft Buffers
	Proposed Sex Offender Registration Form

	4 - Proposed Changes to Christmas in Rosenberg
	PowerPoint Presentation: Rosenberg Christmas Nights

	5 - Merchandise Displayed at Site of Sale Discussion
	Sugar Land Code Excerpt - Chapter 2, Article II, Part 12. General Business District (B-2)

	6 - Proposed Stop Sign Plan Discussion
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Section 28-26
	Friendswood, Texas - Multi-Way Stop Application, R-1 Series Warrant Worksheet
	Pasadena, Texas - Fax of Stop Sign Regulations
	Sugar Land, Texas - Stop Sign Brochure
	Richardson, Texas - Stop Sign Requests
	Irvine, Texas - Website Excerpt - Stop Signs
	Grand Forks, North Dakota - Website Excerpt - Stop Signs

	7 - Vehicle Parking in Front Yards Discussion
	Sugar Land Code Excerpt - Chapter 5, Article IV, Division 6

	8 - Proposed Curb Painting Amendments Discussion
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Section 6-367
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-01-14

	9 - Adjournment



